
1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Introduction of Public

4. Public Comment

5. Reports

A. President's Report (Recommended Motion: None, presentation only)

B. Director's Report (Recommended Motion: None, presentation only)

C. Fiscal Report Presentation (Recommended Motion: None, presentation only)

6. Consent Agenda

A. Consideration and Action to Approve the Minutes of May 16, 2023 Regular
Bloomington Public Library Board meeting (Recommended Motion: Approve the
proposed minutes)

B.  Consideration and Action to Approve Bills in the Amount of $2,674,285.58
(Recommended Motion: Approve the proposed bills)

7. Approval Items

A. Approve Non-Resident Card Participation for 7.01.23 - 6.30.24 (Recommended
Motion: Approve participating in the nonresident card program - using the tax bill
method for nonresident property owners, charging a fee of 15% of the monthly
rent for nonresident renters, and waiving the fee for all nonresident applicants
under 18)

B. Approve Revised Intergovernmental Agreement for Library Services between
Bloomington Public Library and Golden Prairie Public Library District
(Recommended Motion: Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement)

C. Approve the Annual OCLC Service Renewal (Recommended Motion: Waive the

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR SESSION
OSBORN ROOM, BLOOMINGTON POLICE DEPARTMENT

305 S. EAST ST., BLOOMINGTON, IL 61701
TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023, 5:30 PM

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Items listed on the Consent Agenda are approved with one motion; Items pulled from
the Consent Agenda for discussion are listed and voted on separately.

 

 

 

 

 

1



Competitive Bid Process and Approve the Annual OCLC Service Renewal from
Illinois Heartland Library System)

D. Approve a Change Order to Add the Infrastructure to Support Future Solar Panels
(Recommended Motion: Approve the Change Order as Presented)

E. Approve a Change Order to Add the Infrastructure to Support Electric Vehicle
Chargers (Recommended Motion: Approve the Change Order as Presented)

F. Approve a Construction Contingency Change to Level Existing Building Floors
(Recommended Motion: Approve the Construction Contingency Change in an
amount up to $45,000)

G. Approve Strategic Goals (Recommended Motion: Approve the Strategic Goals as
Presented)

8. Discussion Items

A. Sexual Harassment Training (Recommended Motion: None, presentation only)

B. Decennial Committee on Local Government Efficiency (Recommended Motion:
None, discussion only)

9. Comments by Trustees

10. Adjournment

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities planning to attend the meeting who require reasonable
accommodations to observe and/or participate, or who have questions about the
accessibility of the meeting, should contact the City’s ADA Coordinator at 309-434-2468 or
mhurt@cityblm.org.

2

matilto:mhurt@cityblm.org


3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



Circulation Current Last Year Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Adults 26,546 34,707 -24% 26,546 34,707 -24%

Teens 1,962 1,129 74% 1,962 1,129 74%

Children 29,022 36,416 -20% 29,022 36,416 -20%

Digital Downloads 21,802 18,396 19% 21,802 18,396 19%

Total 79,332 90,648 -12% 79,332 90,648 -12%

Active Cardholders Current Current Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Adults 19,023 19,102 0% N/A N/A N/A

Teens 3,637 3,257 12% N/A N/A N/A

Children 7,407 5,688 30% N/A N/A N/A

Total 30,067 28,047 7% N/A N/A N/A

New Cardholders Current Current Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Total 249 282 -12% 249 282 -12%

Visits Current Current Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Main 10,803 13,060 -17% 10,803 13,060 -17%

Bookmobile 2,884 1,780 62% 2,884 1,780 62%

Total 13,687 14,840 -8% 13,687 14,840 -8%

Room Use Current Current Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Study Room 0 65 -100% 0 65 -100%

Digital Preservation Studio 0 8 -100% 0 8 -100%

Community Room 0 11 -100% 0 11 -100%

Total 0 84 -100% 0 84 -100%

Community Outreach Current Current Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Staff Outreach Visits 43 28 54% 43 28 54%

People Reached 7,241 5,873 23% 7,241 5,873 23%

Community Visits to the Library 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A

People Reached 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A

Total Outreach Visits 43 28 54% 43 28 54%

Total People Reached 7,241 5,873 23% 7,241 5,873 23%

Statistics At-A-Glance

Strategic Priority: Explore and implement strategies to improve access to the library and its resources.

May 2023

24



Programs Current Last Year Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Adults 10 10 0% 10 10 0%

Attendance 137 153 -10% 137 153 -10%

Teens 12 1 1100% 12 1 1100%

Attendance 365 37 886% 365 37 886%

Childrens 8 1 700% 8 1 700%

Attendance 908 67 1255% 908 67 1255%

Total Programs 30 12 150% 30 12 150%

Total Attendance 1,410 257 449% 1,410 257 449%

1-on-1 Appointments Current Current Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Total 3 4 -25% 3 4 -25%

Reference Questions Current Current Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Total 2,463 2,697 -9% 2,463 2,697 -9%

Training Hours Current Last Year Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Total 93 123.75 -25% 93 124 -25%

Technology Use Current Last Year Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Public Computer Use 1,335 1,411 -5% 1,335 1,411 -5%

WiFi Sessions 1,262 1,775 -29% 1,262 1,775 -29%

Website/Catalog Hits 44,225 49,464 -11% 44,225 49,464 -11%

Online Resource Use 13,024 4,066 220% 13,024 4,066 220%

Interlibrary Loan Current Last Year Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Received 428 282 52% 428 282 52%

Sent 78 202 -61% 78 202 -61%

Volunteer Hours Current Current Change FYTD Last FYTD Change

Total 5 0.00 N/A 5 0 N/A

Strategic Priority: Work effectively through the use of technology.

Strategic Priority: Administer a cost-effective public library.

Strategic Priority: Recruit, train and develop a knowledgeable, collaborative staff.

Strategic Priority: Provide relevant and innovative services, collections and programs to meet the 

emergent needs of our community.

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



 

MINUTES 
BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD – REGULAR SESSION 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 5:30 PM 
1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR SESSION 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 5:30 PM 
 
The Library Board of Trustees convened in regular session at 5:30 PM, May 16, 2023. 
President Westerhout called the meeting to order. 

 
Roll Call 

 

Attendee Name Title Status 

Catrina Parker Trustee Present 
   

Matthew Watchinski Trustee Present 
   

Alicia Whitworth Trustee Present 
   

Dianne Hollister Trustee Present 
   

Van Miller Trustee Present 
   

Alicia Henry Trustee Present 
   

Julian Westerhout President Present 
   

John Argenziano Trustee Absent 
   

Susan Mohr Vice President Absent 
   

 
Also Present: Nan Goerlitz, Administrative Assistant; Jeanne Hamilton, Library Director; and 
Kathy Jeakins, Business Manager. 
 
Introduction of Public 
 
Jim Russell, Golden Prairie Public Library Board Trustee. 
 
Public Comment 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Reports 

 
The following item was presented: 
 

Item 5.A. President's Report, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library. 

President Westerhout talked about moving to a new format for agendas and packets 
used by the city. One concern he had is that the app was last updated in 2019, and 
therefore Apple doesn't consider it secure. 

32



 

MINUTES 
BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD – REGULAR SESSION 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 5:30 PM 
2 
 

 

Jeanne Hamilton indicated that downloading the app does give access to some additional 
features, but it isn't required. We will continue to send the full packet PDF. We will add 
clickable links to each packet part, and a clickable link on the first page of each packet part 
will lead back to the agenda for easier navigation. Jeanne asked if it would be helpful to 
have a file for the full packet plus a file for just the agenda. There was a question about 
also having a separate file for the previous month's minutes, and she indicated that would 
require more steps on our part. The consensus was to just receive the agenda and the whole 
packet. 

 
President Westerhout stated that the committees for FY24 will stay the same as FY23. 
 
Budget & Personnel (meeting the first Tuesday of the month, as needed): 

Catrina Parker, Chair 

John Argenziano 

Alicia Henry 

Matt Watchinski 
 
3Ps (meeting the second Tuesday of the month, as needed): 

Susan Mohr, Chair 

Dianne Hollister 

Van Miller 

Alicia Whitworth 
 
The following item was presented: 
 

Item 5.B. Director's Report, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library. 

Jeanne Hamilton is pleased to report that looking back over the past seven years, this 
year, the Bookmobile attendance set an annual attendance record. 

 

Summer Reading Program is coming up fast. Staff are visiting a lot of the schools in the 
area, sharing details about the program, and sending reading logs home with students. The 
Foundation donated money towards prizes, and staff try to focus on local businesses when 
purchasing prizes. 

 

Jeanne gave a report on the renovation & expansion. The construction team is starting to 
pour concrete in the parking structure, which will be comprised of both poured and precast 
concrete. Windows are going in on the west side, and they have gradients of striping to help 
with sun shading. Jeanne also mentioned she met with CEFCU about a possible capital 
campaign donation. 

 
Julian Westerhout shared that the BPL website now has a web store for logo merchandise. 
 
The following item was presented: 
 

Item 5.C. Fiscal Report Presentation, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library.  

33



 

MINUTES 
BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD – REGULAR SESSION 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 5:30 PM 
3 
 

Kathy Jeakins, Business Manager, indicated the donations report for FY23 was included 
in the packet. She reported that the fiscal year ended on April 30, so revenues & 
expenditures should be at 100 percent. The revenues exceeded the original budget and 
expenses were underspent. 

 
Consent Agenda 

 
The following items were presented: 
 
 

Item 6.A. Consideration and Action to Approve the Minutes of April 18, 2023 Regular 
BPL Board meeting, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library. 

 
Item 6.B. Consideration and Action to Approve Bills in the Amount of $749,258.88, as 
requested by the Bloomington Public Library. 

 
Trustee Hollister made a motion, seconded by Trustee Watchinski, to approve the 
consent agenda as presented. 

 
Motion carried 7-0 (viva voce). 

 
Approval Items 
 
The following item was presented: 
 

Item 7.A. Approve the Annual EBSCO Subscription Service Renewal, as requested by the 
Bloomington Public Library. 

Trustee Hollister made a motion, seconded by Trustee Watchinski, to approve the 
item as presented. 

Julian Westerhout, President directed the staff liaison to call roll: 

 
AYES: Trustee Parker; Trustee Watchinski; Trustee Whitworth; Trustee Hollister; 
Trustee Miller; Trustee Henry; President Westerhout.  
Motion carried. 
 

 
Discussion Items 
 
The following item was presented: 
 

Item 8.A. Intergovernmental Agreement for Library Services between Bloomington 
Public Library and Golden Prairie Public Library District, as requested by the 
Bloomington Public Library. 

 
The GPPLD Board requested a review of the intergovernmental agreement (IGA). Ancel Glink 
has reviewed it from a legal standpoint. Jeanne stated there were very few amendments 
needed. One major change was adding in two townships that were added to Golden Prairie 
right after incorporation that were never included in the agreement. Our insurance 

34



 

MINUTES 
BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD – REGULAR SESSION 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 5:30 PM 
4 
 

company also had suggestions for updated language in that section and some of the law 
references were updated. Julian suggested revisiting the agreement every 5-7 years, 
specifically highlighting the dollar amounts stated in the insurance section that may need 
updating.  

Alicia Henry asked whether the Bloomington Public Library & Golden Prairie Public Library 
District have same tax rate. Jeanne indicated that they have different rates. GPPLD must go 
to voters for any increases, whereas the any tax increases for BPL are approved by City 
Council. 

 

Since there are two parties involved in this IGA, this month both boards will review the 
agreement. After those reviews, any revisions will be incorporated and brought forward for 
approval at a future meeting.  

 
 
The following item was presented: 
 

Item 8.B. Strategic Goal Brainstorming, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library.  

Trustees shared many ideas for goals/initiatives which the Director will use to develop 
draft strategic goals for the board’s review. 

 
Comments from Trustees 

 
Alicia Henry asked if Unit 5 schools are included in the Summer Reading Program school 
visits. Jeanne indicated that the visits are dependent on the schools' wants/needs and there 
are school visits to several Unit 5 schools, particularly those with a heavy concentration of 
Bloomington students. Also, all District 87 and Unit 5 schools receive reading logs to send 
home with the students. 

Alicia Henry requested another Board member review bills for her on June 5, since she will 
be out of town. Van Miller volunteered. 
 
Adjournment 
 
 

Trustee Parker made a motion, seconded by Trustee Whitworth, to adjourn. 

 
 

Motion carried 7-0 (viva voce). 
 
 
The Meeting Adjourned at 6:31 PM. 
 
 

35



36



37



38



REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.

FOR LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES: June 20, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: City-Wide Impact

SUBJECT: Approve Non-Resident Card Participation for 7.01.23 - 6.30.24

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve participating in the nonresident card program - using the 
tax bill method for nonresident property owners, charging a fee of 15% of the monthly rent 
for nonresident renters, and waiving the fee for all nonresident applicants under 18

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: According to Illinois state law, library boards must annually take action on 
whether to offer nonresident cards and, if participating in nonresident services, to 
determine the fee for the cards based on calculations outlined in the law. 

Nonresident cards are only available to people who reside in areas without a public library, 
for example, Le Roy. People who reside in areas served by libraries are eligible for 
reciprocal library accounts at no charge. 

We have participated in nonresidents services for many years and for the past several years, 
we have followed the “tax bill method” (essentially what the nonresident would pay if their 
property were located in the Library’s service area).

Two years ago, a law was passed requiring any libraries providing nonresident cards to waive 
the fee for K-12 students that are eligible for free or reduced lunch. Last year, a 
complimentary law was passed allowing libraries to choose to extend that fee waiver to all 
people under 18. 

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: This has a very minimal impact on our revenues, with only 11 
households currently receiving nonresident cards.

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Jeanne Hamilton

39



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

FOR PROVIDING LIBRARY SERVICE 

 

 

 

 

by and between the 

 

 

 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE PUBLIC 

LIBRARY OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON,  

MCLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

 

 

and 

 

 

 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE GOLDEN 

PRAIRIE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, MCLEAN 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

 

 

 

Dated as of July 1, 1990 

Amended July 1, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

RECITALS....................................................1 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS.................................3 

Section 1.1 Definitions.................................3 

Section 1.2 Construction................................4 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES...............6 

Section 2.1 Representation and Warranties of the 

 City Library Trustees.......................6 

 Section 2.1.1 Organization and Standing..........6 

 Section 2.1.2 Power and Authority................6 

 Section 2.1.3 Authorization and Enforceability...6 

 Section 2.1.4 No Violation.......................6 

 Section 2.1.5 Governmental Consents and 

   Approvals..........................6 

Section 2.2  Representations and Warranties of the 

  District Library Trustees...................7 

 Section 2.2.1 Organization and Standing..........7 

 Section 2.2.2 Power and Authority................7 

 Section 2.2.3 Authorization and Enforceability...7 

 Section 2.2.4 No Violation.......................7 

 Section 2.2.5 Governmental Consents and 

   Approvals..........................8 

Section 2.3  Disclaimer of Warranties....................8 

ARTICLE III  OBLIGATIONS OF CITY LIBRARY TRUSTEES........9 

Section 3.1  Common Library Services.....................9 

Section 3.2  Additional Library Services.................9 

Section 3.3  Rules and Regulations.......................9 

Section 3.4  Indemnification............................10 

Section 3.5  Insurance Required.........................10 

Section 3.6  Other Services.............................10 

ARTICLE IV  OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRICT LIBRARY TRUSTEES...12 

Section 4.1  Acceptance of Library Services.............12 

Section 4.2  Annual Payment for Library Services........12 

Section 4.3  Grant Applications and Funds...............13 

ARTICLE V  DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES......................14 

Section 5.1  Defaults – Rights to Cure..................14 

41



 

 

Section 5.2  Remedies...................................14 

ARTICLE VI  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS...................16 

Section 6.1  Entire Contract and Amendments.............16 

Section 6.2  Third Parties..............................16 

Section 6.3  Counterparts...............................16 

Section 6.4  Waiver.....................................17 

Section 6.5  Cooperation and Further Assurances.........17 

Section 6.6  Severability...............................17 

Section 6.7  Notices....................................17 

Section 6.8  Successors in Interest.....................18 

Section 6.9  No Joint Venture, Agency, or  

  Partnership Created; Reservation of 

  Rights, etc................................18 

Section 6.10  Illinois Law...............................19 

Section 6.11  Costs and Expenses.........................19 

Section 6.12  No Personal Liability of Officials.........19 

Section 6.13  Repealer...................................19 

Section 6.14  Term.......................................20 

 

 

42



 

1 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

FOR PROVIDING LIBRARY SERVICES 

 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR PROVIDING LIBRARY 

SERVICES (the “Agreement") originally executed on the 21st day of 

August, 1990 and amended on the 1st day of July, 2023dated as of the 1st 

day of July, 1990, but actually executed on the dates set forth 

below by the respective signatures of each of the parties hereto, is 

made and entered into by and between the Board of Trustees of the 

Public Library of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, 

Illinois, (the “City Library Trustees”), and Board of Library 

Trustees of the Golden Prairie Public Library District, McLean 

County, Illinois, a body politic and corporate (the “District Library 

Trustees”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, in accordance with and pursuant to the The Illinois 

Public Library District Act (75 ILCS 16/Illinois Revised Statutes, 

ch. 81, par. 1001-1 et seq., as supplemented and amended, the 

“Library District Act”), the Golden Prairie Library District, 

McLean County, Illinois, (the “District”) was duly created, formed 

and established in 1989 to provide a local public institution of 

general education for its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the District Library Trustees, upon such formation 

of the District, have determined that it is necessary and in the best 

interests of the citizens of the District for the District Library 

Trustees to contract for the provision of such library service to 

its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with and pursuant to The Illinois 

Local Library Act (75 ILCS 5/Illinois Revised statutes, ch. 81, par. 

1-0.1 et seq., as supplemented and amended, the “Local Library 

Act”) 

43



 

2 

 

 

the city Library Trustees own, operate, and maintain a public 

library building and related library facilities and materials 

for the use and benefit of the citizens of the City of 

Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10(a) of Article VII of 

the Constitution of the State of Illinois, units of local 

government may contract or otherwise associate among 

themselves to obtain or share services and to exercise, 

combine or transfer any power or function, in any manner not 

prohibited by law or by ordinance, and may use their credit, 

revenues, and other resources to pay costs and to service 

debt related to intergovernmental activities; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4-7(8) and (9) of the 

Local Library Act, the city Library Trustees have the power 

to contract with any public or private corporation or entity 

for the purpose of providing or receiving library service and 

to join with the board or boards of any one or more libraries 

in the State of Illinois for the maintenance of a common 

library or common library services for participants upon such 

terms as may be agreed upon by and between the boards; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 30-55.40 and 30-55.454-

11(8) and (9) of the Library District Act, the District 

Library Trustees have the power to contract with any public 

or private corporation or entity for the purpose of providing 

or receiving library service or of performing any or all 

other acts necessary and proper to carry out the 

responsibilities, the spirit, and the provisions of such Act 

and to join with the board or boards of one or more public 

libraries within the State of Illinois in maintaining 

libraries, or for the maintenance of a common library or 

common library services for the participants upon such terms 

44



 

3 

 

and conditions as may be agreed upon by and between the 

participating library boards"; and 

WHEREAS, the City Library Trustees are willing to 

provide and the District Library Trustees are willing to 

contract for such library services under and upon such terms 

and conditions as are more specifically set forth in this 

Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual 

covenants and agreements contained herein, and for other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the Board of Library Trustees 

of the Public Library of the City of Bloomington, McLean 

County, Illinois and the Board of Library Trustees of the 

Golden Prairie Public Library District, McLean County, 

Illinois hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Definitions. For purposes of this 

Agreement, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, 

words and terms used in this Agreement shall have the meaning 

provided from place to place herein, including as follows: 

“City” means the City of Bloomington, McLean County, 

Illinois.  

“Corporate Authorities” means the Mayor and City 

Council of the City.  

“District” or "Golden Prairie Public Library District" 

means the library district established in accordance with and 

pursuant to The Illinois Public Library District Act comprised 

of the territory described as follows: 

All of Bloomington Township (excluding any part of the 

city of Bloomington located in Bloomington Township), 

all of Dale Township, and all of Old Town Township 

45



 

4 

 

(excluding any part of the Village of Downs located in  

Old Town Township), all of Dawson Township, and all of 

Arrowsmith Township in McLean County, Illinois (and 

expressly excluding the City of Bloomington and City of 

Bloomington Township), 

 

as such territory may subsequently be modified or amended by 

annexation to or disconnection from such territory. 

"Library Facilities” means the main library building 

located at 205 E. Olive Street in the City, or any other 

building or structure operated or maintained by the City 

Library Trustees for such library purposes, together with 

related furniture, fixtures and equipment, and library 

materials, including but not limited to, books, periodicals, 

recordings and electronic data storage and retrieval 

facilities. 

"Library Services” means the provision of facilities 

and services for the public use of the Library Facilities. 

"District Library Tax” means the annual public library 

tax which may be levied by the District Library Trustees for 

the establishment, maintenance and support of a public library 

or libraries or for contracting for library service in 

accordance with and pursuant to the Library District Act but 

specifically does not mean or include any other tax which may 

be levied by the District Library Trustees in accordance with 

and pursuant to the Library District Act or any other law of 

the State of Illinois. 

“Tax Rate Limit” means the District Library Tax rate 

which is equal to but does not exceed .15% of the va1ue of all 

taxable property within the District, as equalized and assessed 

by the Department of Revenue. 

Section 1.2 Construction. This Agreement, except where 

46



 

5 

 

the context by clear implication shall otherwise require, 

shall be construed and applied as follows: 

(a) definitions include both singular and plural. 

(b) pronouns include both singular and plural and 

cover all genders; and 

(c) headings of sections herein are solely for 

convenience of reference and do not constitute a part 

hereof and shall not affect the meaning, construction or 

effect hereof. 

(d) the words "hereof", "herein", "hereunder", 

"hereto", and other words of similar import refer to this 

Agreement as a whole and not solely to the particular 

portion thereof in which any such word is used. 

 

[End of Article I] 

 

 

 

  

47



 

6 

 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1 Representations and Warranties of the City 

Library Trustees. In order to induce the District Library 

Trustees to enter into this Agreement, the City Library Trustees 

hereby make certain representations and warranties to the District 

Library Trustees, as follows: 

Section 2.1.1 Organization and Standing. The City 

Library Trustees are duly organized, validly existing and in good 

standing under the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Illinois, and own, operate and maintain Library Facilities for the 

use and benefit of the citizens of the City pursuant to and in 

accordance with the Local Library Act. 

Section 2.1.2 Power and Authority. The City Library 

Trustees have full power and authority to execute and deliver 

this Agreement and to perform all of its agreements, obligations, 

and undertakings hereunder. 

Section 2.1.3 Authorization and Enforceability. The 

execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement have been 

duly and validly authorized by all necessary action on the part of 

the City Library Trustees. This Agreement is a legal, valid, and 

binding obligation of the City Library Trustees, enforceable 

against the City Library Trustees in accordance with its terms. 

Section 2.1.4 No Violation. Neither the execution nor 

the delivery of this Agreement or the performance of the City 

Library Trustees' agreements, obligations, and undertakings 

hereunder will conflict with, violate, or result in a breach of 

any of the terms, conditions, or provisions of any agreement, 

rule, regulation, statute, ordinance, judgment, decree, or 

other law by which the City Library Trustees may be bound. 

Section 2.1.5 Governmental Consents and Approvals. No 

consent or approval by any governmental authority is required 

48



 

7 

 

in connection with the execution and delivery by the City 

Library Trustees of this Agreement or the performance by the 

City Library Trustees of its obligations hereunder, including 

in particular the Corporate Authorities of the City. 

Section 2.2 Representations and Warranties of the District 

Library Trustees. In order to induce the City Library Trustees 

to enter into this Agreement, the District Library Trustees 

make the following representations and warranties to the City 

Library Trustees: 

Section 2.2.1 Organization and Standing. The District Library 

Trustees are a body politic and corporate duly organized, 

validly existing and in good standing under the Constitution 

and laws of the State of Illinois to establish, maintain and 

support library services for the use and benefit of the 

citizens of the District pursuant to and in accordance with 

the Library District Act. 

Section 2.2.2 Power and Authority. The District Library 

Trustees have full power and authority to execute and deliver 

this Agreement and to perform all of its agreements, 

obligations and undertakings hereunder. 

Section 2.2.3 Authorization and Enforceability. The execution, 

delivery and performance of this Agreement have been duly and 

validly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the 

District Library Trustees. This Agreement is a legal, valid 

and binding obligation of the District Library Trustees, 

enforceable against the District Library Trustees in 

accordance with its terms. 

Section 2.2.4 No Violation. Neither the execution nor 

the delivery of this Agreement or performance of the District 

Library Trustees' agreements, obligations and undertakings 

hereunder will conflict with, violate or result in a breach 

of any of the terms, conditions, or provisions of any 

49



 

8 

 

agreement, rule, regulation, statute, ordinance, judgment, 

decree, or other law by which the District Library Trustees 

may be bound. 

Section 2.2.5 Governmental Consents and Approvals. No 

consent or approval by any governmental authority is required 

in connection with the execution and delivery by the District 

Library Trustees of this Agreement or the performance by the 

District Library Trustees of its obligations hereunder. 

Section 2.3 Disclaimer of Warranties. The City Library 

Trustees and the District Library Trustees acknowledge that 

neither has made any warranties to the other, except as set 

forth in this Agreement. 

[End of Article II] 

50



 

9 

 

ARTICLE III 

OBLIGATIONS OF CITY LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Section 3.1 Common Library Services. The City Library 

Trustees agree to provide and make available such common Library 

Services to the District Library Trustees, for and on behalf of the 

use and benefit of the citizens of the District, in the same manner 

and to the same extent as such Library Services may now or hereafter 

be provided and made available by the City Library Trustees for and on 

behalf of the use and benefit of the citizens of the City. 

Section 3.2 Additional Library Services. The City Library 

Trustees and the District Library Trustees mutually acknowledge their 

duty and obligation to provide and render such Library Services as 

are of the greatest benefit to the greatest number of their 

respective citizens, and, toward that end, the City Library Trustees 

agree to cooperate with the District Library Trustees to provide such 

reasonable additional Library Services to the citizens of the 

District as may from time to time be mutually agreed upon by both the 

City Library Trustees and the District Library Trustees so as to 

provide and make available such additional Library Services as may 

be required so as to enable the citizens of the District, who are 

more remotely located from the Library Facilities than the citizens 

of the City, to effectively receive such benefit. Such additional 

Library Services may include, but shall not be limited to, the 

provisions of certain Library Services within the territory of 

the District by means of a bookmobile, postal service, telephone, 

or other means of communication. 

Section 3.3 Rules and Regulations. The provision of 

Library Services by the City Library Trustees as specified in this 

Agreement shall at all times be subject to such reasonable rules 

and regulations as may lawfully be adopted from time to time by 

the City Library Trustees for the use of its Library Facilities, 

provided, however, that no such rule or regulation shall be 

51



 

10 

 

inconsistent with or have the effect of diminishing, reducing, or 

eliminating the obligations of the City Library Trustees to 

provide such Library Services as are specified in sections 3.1 

and 3.2 of this Agreement. 

Section 3.4 Indemnification. The city Library Trustees agree 

to protect, indemnify, hold and save harmless and defend the 

District Library Trustees against any and all losses, claims, 

demands, costs, causes, expenses and fees, including reasonable 

attorney fees, incurred by reason of any suit or other claim or 

demand for damages or injury, including death resulting 

therefrom, arising in favor of any person on account of or in 

connection with providing such Library Services as are specified 

in Sections 3.l and 3.2 hereof. 

Section 3.5 Insurance Required. During the term of this 

Agreement, or any extension thereof as herein provided, the City 

Library Trustees shall cause secure Commercial General liability 

insurance to be taken out and maintained in such generally 

recognized responsible from an AM Best AVII (or better) rated 

insurance companyies qualified to do business in the State of 

Illinois as may be selected by the city and/or the City Library 

Trustees, insuring continuously against all such risks as are 

specified in Section 3.4 hereof, and being in such amounts as are 

customarily insured against by libraries of like size and type. Limits 

shall be for no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 

general aggregate. All policies evidencing such library insurance 

shall name the City and/or the City Library Trustees as insureds and 

the District Library Trustees as an additional insured party. 

Section 3.6 Other Services. The City Library Trustees agree 

to cause all reports, statistics, and other material or information 

required by the Library District Act, the State of Illinois or any of 

its agencies, (including in particular the Illinois State Librarian) 

52



 

11 

 

and other units of local government to be timely prepared and filed 

for and on behalf of the District Library Trustees by the Director 

and/or employees of its Library Facilities, as appropriate. The City 

Library Trustees shall also cause such information and clerical 

assistance as may be reasonably required by the District Library 

Trustees to be compiled or provided for the use and benefit of the 

District Library Trustees. In addition, the City Library Trustees 

shall cause the Director of its Library Facilities, or such 

Director’s designee, to attend all regular and special meetings of 

the District Library Trustees. 

 

[End of Article III] 

53



 

12 

 

f 

ARTICLE IV 

OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRICT LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Section 4.1 Acceptance of Library Services. The District 

Library Trustees agree to accept and receive such Library Services as 

are agreed to be provided and made available by the City Library 

Trustees for and on behalf of the use and benefit of the citizens of 

the District and to pay for such Library Services in the amount, at 

the time and in the manner set forth in Section 4.2 of this Agreement 

below. 

Section 4.2 Annual Payment for Library Services. The 

District Library Trustees agree to pay to the City Library Trustees 

for the Library Services to be provided to the District Library 

Trustees under this Agreement such amount as shall be equal to such 

net remaining proceeds as are available from the District Library 

Tax levied by the District Library Trustees at the Tax Rate Limit and 

collected by the County Collector of McLean County and thereafter 

deposited with the District Treasurer, after the retention by the 

District Treasurer of such amount as shall be required by the 

District Library Trustees for "Other Obligations of the District". 

As used in this section, "Other Obligations of the District" mean 

and include all appropriations in the annual budget and appropriation 

ordinance of the District Library Trustees for each fiscal year other 

than the appropriation for the payment of Library Services as 

specified in this section. Such "Other Obligations of the District" 

shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the total appropriations made 

in such annual budget and appropriation ordinance and may 

include, but shall not be limited to, appropriations for (1) 

the annual audit, (2) legal services, (3) the publication and 

service of legal notices, (4) dues, fees, and assessments to 

associations having the purpose of improving library services 

or librarianship, (5) surety bonds and insurance, (6) the 

maintenance or replacement of moneys in or for the Working 

54



 

13 

 

Cash Fund established by the District, and (7) any and all 

such other lawful purposes as may be deemed necessary by the 

District Library Trustees to carry out the spirit and intent 

of the Library District Act to provide Library Services 

within the District. Such amount of net remaining proceeds 

shall be paid to the City Library Trustees or at their 

discretion by the District Treasurer within forty-five (45) 

days of the date any such moneys are deposited by the County 

Collector with the District Treasurer. 

Section 4.3 Grant Applications and Funds. The District 

Library Trustees and the city Library Trustees agree to 

mutually cooperate in connection with the application for any 

federal or State of Illinois funds which may be made 

available to the District Library Trustees for library 

purposes. The expenditure of any such federal or State of 

Illinois funds so made available to the District Library 

Trustees shall be made by the District Library Trustees in 

accordance with such terms and conditions as may be 

established therefor in any such application and/or award of 

such funds. 

 

[End of Article IV] 

55



 

14 

 

ARTICLE V 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 5.1 Defaults – Rights to Cure. Failure or 

delay by either Party to timely perform any term or provision 

of this agreement shall constitute a default under this 

Agreement. The Party who so fails or delays must, upon 

receipt of written notice of the existence of such default, 

immediately commence to cure, correct, or remedy such default 

and thereafter proceed with diligence to cure such default. 

The Party claiming such default shall give written notice of 

the alleged default to the Party alleged to be in default 

specifying the default complained of. Except as required to 

protect against immediate, irreparable harm, the Party 

asserting a default may not institute proceedings against the 

other Party until thirty (30) days after having given such 

notice.  If such default is cured within such thirty (30) 

day period, the default shall not be deemed to constitute a 

breach of this Agreement. If the default is one which cannot 

reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days, such period shall 

be extended for such time as is reasonably necessary for the 

curing of the same, so long as there is diligent proceeding 

to cure such default. If such default is cured within such 

extended period, the default shall not be deemed to 

constitute a breach of this Agreement. However, a default 

not cured as provided above shall constitute a breach of this 

Agreement. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

Agreement, any failure or delay by either Party in asserting 

any of its rights or remedies as to any default or alleged 

default or breach shall not operate as a waiver of any such 

default or breach of any rights or remedies it may have as a 

result of such default or breach. 

Section 5.2 Remedies. The sole remedies of either 

56



 

15 

 

Party in the event of a default by the other Party under any 

of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be either 

to institute legal action against the other Party for 

specific performance or other appropriate equitable relief or 

to terminate this Agreement. 

[End of Article V]

57



 

16 

 

ARTICLE VI 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 6.1 Entire Contract and Amendments. This 

Agreement (together with the Exhibits attached hereto) is the 

entire contract between the City Library Trustees and the 

District Library Trustees relating to the subject matter 

hereof, supersedes all prior and contemporaneous 

negotiations, understandings and agreements, written or oral, 

between the City Library Trustees and the District Library 

Trustees, and may not be modified or amended except by a 

written instrument executed by both of the Parties. 

Section 6.2 Third Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement, 

whether expressed or implied, is intended to confer any rights 

or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any other 

persons other than the City Library Trustees and the District 

Library Trustees and their respective successors and assigns, 

nor is anything in this Agreement intended to relieve or 

discharge the obligation or liability of any third persons to 

either the City Library Trustees or the District Library 

Trustees, nor shall any provision give any third parties any 

rights of subrogation or action over or against either the 

City Library Trustees or the District Library Trustees. This 

Agreement is not intended to and does not create any third-

party beneficiary rights whatsoever. 

Section 6.3 Counterparts. Any number of counterparts 

of this Agreement may be executed and delivered and each shall 

be considered an original and together they shall constitute 

one agreement. 

58



 

17 

 

I 
Section 6.4 Waiver. Any Party to this Agreement may 

elect to waive any right or remedy it may enjoy hereunder, 

provided that no such waiver shall be deemed to exist unless 

such waiver is in writing. No such waiver shall obligate the 

waiver of any other right or remedy hereunder, or shall be 

deemed to constitute a waiver of other rights and remedies 

provided pursuant to this Agreement. l 

Section 6.5 Cooperation and Further Assurances. The 

City Library Trustees and the District Library Trustees each 

covenant and agree that each will do, execute, acknowledge 

and deliver or cause to be done, executed and delivered, such 

agreements, instruments and documents supplemental hereto and 

such further acts, instruments, pledges and transfers as may 

be reasonably required for the better assuring, pledging, 

assigning and confirming unto the City Library Trustees or 

the District Library Trustees all and singular the rights, 

Library Services and District Library Tax covenanted, agreed, 

and pledged to be provided or paid under or in respect of 

this Agreement. 

Section 6.6 Severability.  If any section, subsection, 

term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof 

to either Party or circumstance shall, to any extent, be 

invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of such section, 

subsection, term or provision of this Agreement or the 

application of same to such Party or circumstances other than 

those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not 

be affected thereby. 

Section 6.7 Notices. All notices, demands, requests, 

consents, approvals or other communications or instruments 

required or otherwise given under this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be executed by the party or an officer, 

59



 

18 

 

agent or attorney of the party, and shall be deemed to have 

been effective as of the date of actual delivery, if delivered 

personally or by telecommunication actually received, or as 

of the third (3rd) day from and including the date of posting, 

if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, with postage prepaid, addressed as follows (unless 

another address is provided in writing): 

To the City Library Trustees: 

Bloomington Public Library 

205 East Olive Street  

Bloomington, IL 61701  

Attention: Director  

Tel: (309) 828-6091 

Email: librarydirector@bloomingtonlibrary.org 

Fax: (309) 828-7312 

 

To the District Library Trustees: 

c/o Bloomington Public Library 

205 East Olive Street  

Bloomington, IL 61701  

Attention: G P P L D  President  

Tel No.: (309) 828-6091 

Email: gppldfullboard@bloomingtonlibrary.org 

Fax No.: (309) 828-7312 

 

With a copy to the President at his or her home address. 

 

Section 6.8 Successors in Interest. This Agreement 

shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 

hereto and their respective authorized successors and 

assigns; provided, however, that neither Party may assign its 

rights under this Agreement without the express written 

approval of the other Party. 

Section 6.9 No Joint Venture, Agency, or Partnership 

Created; Reservation of Rights, etc. Neither anything in this 

Agreement nor any actions of the Parties to this Agreement 

shall be construed by the Parties or any third person to 

create the relationship of a partnership, agency, or joint 

60



 

19 

 

venture between or among such parties. Except as otherwise 

specifically provided in this Agreement, each Party 

exclusively retains and reserves the rights, obligations, 

duties and powers for providing library service to and for 

the City under, pursuant to and in accordance with the Local 

Library Act, and to and for the District, under, pursuant to 

and in accordance with the District Library Act, as 

applicable, and neither anything in this Agreement nor the 

actions of the Parties to this Agreement shall be construed 

by the Parties or any third person to mean or imply that 

either Party has assumed or otherwise been delegated any such 

rights, obligations, duties or powers of the other Party. 

Section 6.10 Illinois Law. This Agreement shall be 

construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of 

Illinois. 

Section 6.11 Costs and Expenses. If either Party 

defaults in the performance of its obligations hereunder, the 

Parties agree that the defaulting Party shall pay the non-

defaulting Party's costs of enforcing the defaulting Party's 

obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited 

to attorneys' fees and expenses. 

Section 6.12 No Personal Liability of Officials. No 

covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, 

officer, agent, employee or attorney of either Party, in his 

or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the 

City Library Trustees or the District Library Trustees nor any 

official of the City Library Trustees shall be liable 

personally under this Agreement or be subject to any personal 

liability or accountability by reason of the execution, 

delivery and performance of this Agreement. 

Section 6.13 Repealer.  To the extent that any 

61



 

20 

 

ordinance, resolution, rule, order, or provision of either 

Party or any part thereof is in conflict with the provisions 

of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

controlling. 

Section 6.14 Term. This Agreement shall be and 

remain in full force and effect from July 1, 1990, until June 

30, 1991as amended July 1, 2023, until June 30, 2024. This 

Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year 

thereafter for successive one-year periods beginning July 1 

and ending June 30 unless either Party provides written notice 

to the other Party of its intention to terminate this 

Agreement at the end of any such term at least ninety (90) 

days prior to the applicable June 30. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Library Trustees and the 

District Library Trustees have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date set 

forth below. 

  

62



 

 

 BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE 

PUBLIC LIBRARY OF THE CITY OF 

BLOOMINGTON, MCLEAN COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS 

Date: ________________________ By: ___________________________ 

Attest: 

    Its President 

______________________________ 

Secretary  

  

 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE 

GOLDEN PRAIRIE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DISTRICT, MCLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

Date: ________________________ By: ___________________________ 

Attest: 

    Its President 

______________________________ 

Secretary  

 

63



64



65



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.E.

FOR LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES: June 20, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: City-Wide Impact

SUBJECT: Approve a Change Order to Add the Infrastructure to Support Electric Vehicle
Chargers

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve the Change Order as Presented

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: In March, the Board approved moving forward with a project to add 4
Electric Vehicle (EV) Chargers to the future library parking lot in an amount of up to
$20,000. 
 
The cost of the EV charging stations were exactly as budgeted ($8,474.00). 
 
The infrastructure costs are higher than anticipated and amount to $16,864. Resulting in a
total project cost of $25,338. 
 
The architecture and engineering team have reviewed the proposed infrastructure costs and
believe them to be reasonable. Their initial estimate was based on another library project
which required a shorter conduit distance and that had a layout allowing for the chargers to
be mounting on a sidewalk rather than a concrete pad. 
 
The infrastructure work is required in order to offer electric vehicle chargers and it would
be far more costly (if not impossible) to complete in the future, when the parking lot is not
already excavated. 
 

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 5,338 additional dollars. 

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Jeanne Hamilton

66



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.F.

FOR LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES: June 20, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: City-Wide Impact

SUBJECT: Approve a Construction Contingency Change to Level Existing Building Floors

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve the Construction Contingency Change in an amount up to
$45,000

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: When renovating an existing building, it is sometimes discovered that floors
are not completely level. While there is some ability to work around uneven floors, several
areas need to be fixed. The main areas are where the existing building meets the newly
poured floor, where tiles will meet carpet, and in the new community rooms where the
movable partitions will extend down to the floor. 
 
The leveling process is quite extensive, including materials and time to mix concrete, pour
concrete, and ensure the new pour is level. 
 
The architects reviewed the initial quote and while unit prices were reasonable, both the
total labor estimate and total amount of concrete estimate were a bit high. Due to this, the
general contractor agreed to approach this project on a time and materials basis (including
an "up to amount") rather than a flat price. 

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: The cost will be accounted for in the construction contingency which
was included in the original general contractor bid and will not increase the price of the
project.

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Jeanne Hamilton

67



Strategic Plan Approach  

 
 

Top-level goals are like a compass setting or a general direction to take. These are major overarching 
goals that we feel will be important for us to fulfill our mission. There will be many different ways to get 

there. 
 

Top-level goals are our Strategic Priorities. 
 

Mid-level goals are more discrete yet still large goals which can allow us to achieve top-level goals. 
 

Mid-level goals are our Goals. 
 

 
Low-level goals are specific tasks or things we can actually do in the short-term. A good low-level goal is: 

 
Specific 

Measurable 
Achievable 
Relevant 

Time-Bound 
 

Low-level goals are our Initiatives. 
 
  

68



 
Mission 
We provide our diverse community with a helpful and welcoming place that offers equitable access to 
the world of ideas and information and supports lifelong learning. 
 

Vision 
To enrich and inspire our diverse and evolving community.  
 

Strategic Priorities, Goals, and Initiatives 
 
Strategic Priority 1: Explore and implement strategies to improve access to the library and its resources. 

Goal 1.1: Highlight features of the newly expanded and renovated Library 
Initiative 1.1.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 

to include: docents/regular tours for first few weeks of opening; invite 
organizations to take tours (getting feedback along the way); school 
visits with tours; virtual tours; promote rooms, new tech, and other 
new features; promote space for home-based services (like speech 
therapy); reintroduce existing offerings; gamification of visits over a 
year (passport); rethink program guide and promotional methods 

Goal 1.2: Reach beyond the “expected” audiences 
Initiative 1.2.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff  - potential ideas 

to include: working with community partners to reach new 
demographics; provide meeting spaces for community groups; 
techmobile 

Goal 1.3: Continue to build community partnerships 
Initiative 1.3.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 

to include: continue offsite programs/services; celebrity reads (board 
members, mayor, principals); continue collaborating with the schools; 
expand long-term partnerships (schools, museum); collaborate with 
other library boards; Expand schools that the library works with - 
Metcalf, U-high, Central Catholic, and other private schools about 
adding their students to our student card program; use promotional 
outlets provided by partners (ex. ISU group keeps a website of the equip 
BPL has) 

Goal 1.4: Ensure the Library policies and procedures foster positive experiences in the 
newly expanded and renovated Library  

Initiative 1.4.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 
to include: Review and update all library policies (focusing on making 

69



things more accessible and fitting with the new space, meeting room 
policies in particular will need to be reviewed/revised); Review and 
update all library procedures (focusing on making things more 
accessible and fitting with the new space, meeting room/study room 
booking processes in particular will need to be reviewed/revised) 

 
Strategic Priority 2: Provide relevant and innovative services, collections, and programs to meet the 
emergent needs of our community. 

Goal 2.1: Celebrate the newly expanded and renovated Library through programs for 
community residents in all stages of life 

Initiative 2.1.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 
to include: creative programs and services using the new spaces 
(Innovation Lab, Computer Lab, Meeting Rooms, etc.); yoga; senior 
citizens crafts; senior citizens programs; mental health programs (dog 
therapy); DEI programs; tech tutoring; author visits (niche authors); 
local author fair; workforce development classes – resume, computers, 
etc.; cultural programs; lots of youth programs; partnered programs 
(fire dept, Rivian, local trades) 

Goal 2.2: Provide access to new technology and equipment 
Initiative 2.2.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 

to include: training on new technology and equipment; recording 
studios; innovation lab; innovation lab programs; techmobile; develop a 
certification program for the equipment in the innovation lab.  Some 
kind of formal process for getting certified to use the equipment (3D 
printers, laser cutters, etc) 

Goal 2.3: Cultivate and display diverse collections 
Initiative 2.3.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 

to include: cultural displays; books featuring diversity 
Goal 2.4: Celebrate the Bloomington community’s history 

Initiative 2.4.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 
to include: Pantagraph index digitization; local history programs; 
Library history posters 

 
Strategic Priority 3: Recruit, train, and develop a knowledgeable, collaborative staff. 

Goal 3.1: Improve customer service by building a strong staff team 
Initiative 3.1.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 

to include: Strategically review staff roles to ensure we have the right 
roles for our new spaces and needs; offer DEI training, trauma-
informed training; update staff training with new spaces, procedures, 
policies 

 
 

70



Strategic Priority 4: Work effectively through the use of technology. 
Goal 4.1: Implement tools to improve the patron experience 

Initiative 4.1.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 
to include: StackMap (adds a map of where items are located to the 
catalog); ContentDM (using to build a digital Pantagraph index, has 
potential to scan and store additional local history resources); Access 
Control (used to provide access to study rooms and keep staff safer) 

 
Strategic Priority 5: Administer a cost-effective public library. 

Goal 5.1: Steward newly formed donor relationships 
Initiative 5.1.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 

to include: Unveiling of donor wall, special preview events for donors, 
educate donors on giving opportunities,  

Goal 5.2: Seek new funding opportunities 
Initiative 5.2.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 

to include: grants; encourage contributions from organizations, 
businesses, and community members 

Goal 5.3: Use resources effectively and efficiently 
Initiative 5.2.1: Ways to accomplish the goal - TBD by managers/staff – potential ideas 

to include: wise steward of $, resources; pursuit of new, money-saving 
technologies (solar, other new programs); Closely monitor expenses as 
we adjust to our newly expanded space 

 
 
 
 
 
 

71



SEXUAL HARASSMENT
BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY TRUSTEE TRAINING

The BPL Board approved the most recent version of the BPL 
Sexual Harassment Policy in March 2021, with the revision of 
the Personnel Handbook. 

72



DEFINITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

 This policy adopts the definition of sexual harassment as stated in 
the Illinois Human Rights Act, which currently defines sexual 
harassment as:
 Any unwelcome sexual advances or requests for sexual favors or 

any conduct of a sexual nature when:
 1) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term 

or condition of an individual’s employment
 2) Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as 

the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual, or
 3) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with 

an individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or 
offensive working environment

73



EXAMPLES OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

 Verbal

 Text/Electronic

 Non-verbal

 Visual

 Physical

 Employees and Trustees are empowered to and have the responsibility to say 
“NO” and clearly tell the other person their behavior is not welcome again

74



REPORTING

 Any trustee who experiences or witnesses an incident of sexual 
harassment must promptly report the matter to the Board 
President and/or the Library Director.
 Employees are instructed to report the matter to their 

Department Manager, the Human Resources Manager, and/or 
the Library Director. If  the complaint involves the Library 
Director, they are to make their report to the Library Board 
Budget & Personnel Committee. 

 Incidents involving patrons, also are reported to security.

 All allegations will be investigated

75



REPORTING

 State of Illinois Sexual Harassment & Discrimination 
Helpline: http://www.illinois.gov/SexualHarassment  OR 
(877) 236-7703

All allegations reported to Library Management will be 
investigated

76



NO RETALIATION

 No retaliation against any library employee shall be taken due to an 
employee’s or trustee’s:
 1) Disclosure or threatened disclosure of any violation of this policy
 2) The provision of information related to or testimony before any public 

body conducting an investigation, hearing, or inquiry into any violation of 
this policy, or

 3) Assistance or participation in a proceeding to enforce the provisions of 
this policy
Retaliatory action means the reprimand, discharge, suspension, 
demotion, denial of promotion or transfer, or change in the terms of 
conditions of employment of any library employee or appointment of 
any trustee that is taken in retaliation for a library employee’s or library 
trustee’s involvement in a protected activity pursuant to this policy

77



CONSEQUENCES OF A VIOLATION

 Any discipline imposed by the library shall be separate and distinct from any penalty 
imposed by an ethics commission and any fines or penalties imposed by a court of law or 
a State or Federal agency

 Any person who violates this policy may be subject to a fine of up to $5,000 per offense, 
decided by a court of law

78



CONSEQUENCES FOR 
KNOWINGLY MAKING A FALSE REPORT

 A false report is made by an accuser using the sexual harassment report to 
accomplish some end other than stopping sexual harassment or retaliation for 
reporting sexual harassment

 False and frivolous reports are serious offenses that can result in disciplinary 
action

 Any person who intentionally makes a false report shall be subject to discipline or 
discharge pursuant to applicable library and city policies, procedures, employee 
handbooks, and/or collective bargaining agreements

79



ADVICE:

 Be respectful, this includes avoiding gossip

 Stay away from actions that aren’t business-appropriate

 We can’t help if we don’t know about it

80



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.B.

FOR LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES: June 20, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: City-Wide Impact

SUBJECT: Decennial Committee on Local Government Efficiency

RECOMMENDED MOTION: None, discussion only

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: In June 2022, an Illinois law was passed requiring certain (not all) units of
local government to establish a committee at least once every 10 years, to study local
efficiencies and report recommendations to the county board in which the governmental
unit is located. The Act applies to units of local government that may levy any tax, except
municipalities and counties.
 
Attached is a fact sheet from the Illinois Municipal League outlining the requirements of the
law. 
 
The City Legal Department shared that the most common legal opinion continues to be that
City Libraries are not subject to the Local Government Efficiency Act because they are a
part of the municipality, which is exempted. 
 
Most City Libraries, including Normal Public Library, are following this advice and are not
forming a Decennial Committee on Local Government Efficiency.
 

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Staff and Board time. 

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Jeanne Hamilton

ATTACHMENTS:
Fact-Sheet-Decennial-Committee.pdf

81

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2014659/Fact-Sheet-Decennial-Committee.pdf


 500 East Capitol Avenue | P.O. Box 5180 | Springfield, IL 62705-5180 | Ph: 217.525.1220 | Fx: 217.525.7438 | iml.org 

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

DECENNIAL COMMITTEES
ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
EFFICIENCY
SB 3789 (Sen. Morrison, D-Lake Forest/Rep. Carroll, D-Northbrook), now Public Act 102-1088 (available via 
this link), creates the Decennial Committees on Local Government Efficiency Act. 

The Act requires certain (not all) units of local government to establish a committee within one year 
after the effective date, and at least once every 10 years thereafter, to study local efficiencies and report 
recommendations to the county board in which the governmental unit is located. The Act applies to units 
of local government that may levy any tax, except municipalities and counties.

The Act specifically does not apply to municipalities and counties.

However, the Act applies to units of local government whose governing board may include a municipal 
appointee, as detailed in Table 1, and units of local government whose operations may be of interest to, or 
may directly impact, municipalities, as detailed in Table 2.

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION
Each committee shall consist of the following members:

• The president or chief elected (or appointed) official, or their designee, of the governing board of 
the governmental unit, who shall serve as chair of the committee;

• All elected or appointed members of the governing board of the governmental unit;

• At least two residents of the governmental unit appointed by the chair of the board of the 
governmental unit, with the advice and consent of the board;

• All chief executive officers or other officers of the governmental unit; and,

• Additional members appointed by the chairperson as he or she deems appropriate.

COMMITTEE DUTIES
The duties of each committee include, but are not limited to, the following:

• Study the governmental unit’s governing statutes, ordinances, rules, procedures, powers, 
jurisdiction, shared services, intergovernmental agreements and interrelationships with other 
governmental units and the state; 

• Collect data, research and analysis as necessary to prepare a report that 
summarizes the committee’s work, findings and recommendations with 
respect to increased accountability and efficiency; and,

• Provide a report to the county board in which the governmental unit is 
located no later than 18 months after the formation of the committee.

FACT SHEET J u ne  13 ,  2022

82

https://legislative.iml.org/file.cfm?key=24130
https://legislative.iml.org/file.cfm?key=24130


Illinois Municipal League | Decennial Committees on Local Government Efficiency                Page 2

Each committee is dissolved upon the submission of its report to the county board until it is reestablished 
with newly appointed members at least once every ten years.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The committee is required to 
meet at least three times and may 
meet during a regularly-scheduled 
meeting of the governmental unit, so 
long as certain conditions are met. 

Specifically, the governmental unit 
must give a separate notice pursuant 
to the Open Meetings Act (OMA), the 
committee meeting must be listed as 
part of the agenda for the regularly-
scheduled meeting and a majority of 
the members of the committee must 
be present. 

The committee is considered a 
public body under the Freedom of 
Information Act (FOIA).

At the conclusion of each meeting, 
the committee shall conduct a 
survey of residents who attended 
and ask for input on the matters 
discussed at the meeting.

Municipal officials are encouraged 
to monitor these committees for 
actions and reports that may be of 
direct interest to the municipality.

iml.org

TABLE 1:    Units of Local Government Whose Governing Board  
May Include a Municipal Appointee

Type of Government Statutory 
Reference

Airport Authorities 70 ILCS 5/

Cemetery Maintenance Districts 70 ILCS 105/

Civic Centers 70 ILCS 200/

Local Libraries 75 ILCS 5/

Local Mass Transit Districts 70 ILCS 3610/

Mosquito Abatement Districts 70 ILCS 1005/

Municipal Joint Action Water Agencies 5 ILCS 220/3.1

Park Districts 70 ILCS 1205/

Port Districts 70 ILCS 1845/16

Public Health Districts in Towns 70 ILCS 905/

Public Water Districts 70 ILCS 3705/

Rescue Squad Districts 70 ILCS 2005/

River Conservancy Districts 70 ILCS 2105/

Special Recreation Districts 65 ILCS 5/11-95/

Water Authorities 70 ILCS 3715/

Water Commissions 70 ILCS 3720/

TABLE 2:    Units of Local Government Whose Operations  
May Impact Municipalities

Type of Government Statutory 
Reference

Drainage Districts 70 ILCS 605/

Fire Protection Districts 70 ILCS 705/

Forest Preserve Districts 70 ILCS 805/

Hospital Districts 70 ILCS 910/

Museum Districts 70 ILCS 1105/

Public Library Districts 75 ILCS 16/

Road Districts and Road and Bridge Districts 605 ILCS 5/6-101 et seq.

Sanitary Districts 70 ILCS 2405/

Soil and Water Conservation Districts 70 ILCS 405/

Surface Water Protection Districts 70 ILCS 3405/

Water Districts 70 ILCS 3710/

Water Reclamation Districts 70 ILCS 2605/

83

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=823&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=826&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=827&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=990&ChapterID=16
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=983&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=890&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/documents/000502200K3.1.htm
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=007012050HArt%2E+2&ActID=892&ChapterID=15&SeqStart=700000&SeqEnd=3850000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=948&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=886&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=986&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=959&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=960&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=006500050HArt%2E+11+Div%2E+95&ActID=802&ChapterID=14&SeqStart=233800000&SeqEnd=235300000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=988&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=989&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=007006050HArt%2E+III&ActID=869&ChapterID=15&SeqStart=2300000&SeqEnd=5500000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=872&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=887&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=993&ChapterID=16
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=060500050HArt%2E+6&ActID=1745&ChapterID=45&SeqStart=27200000&SeqEnd=45300000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=967&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=857&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=980&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=987&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=969&ChapterID=15

	Library Board of Trustees Agenda
	Item 5.B - Director's Report.pdf
	Item 5.B - Incident & Suspension Report.pdf
	Item 5.B - GPPLD Minutes.pdf
	Item 5.B - May 2023 Statistics.pdf
	Item 5.C - Fiscal Report.pdf
	Item 6.A - Minutes May 16 2023.pdf
	Item 6.B - Bills List.pdf
	Item 7.A - Cover Page
	Item 7.B - GPPLD-BPL Service Contract_working draft.pdf
	Item 7.C - OCLC Service Resolution.pdf
	Item 7.E - Cover Page
	Item 7.F - Cover Page
	Item 7.G - Strategic Plan Draft for 06.2023 Board Meeting.pdf
	Item 8.A - Sexual Harassment Training - BPL Board  - created 2021 06.pdf
	Item 8.B - Cover Page
	Item 8.B - Fact-Sheet-Decennial-Committee.pdf



